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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Mount Pleasant is located just north of Maryland Route 34
west of the Antietam Creek between Sharpsburg and Keedysville in
Washington County, Maryland. It is situated on an area of level
ground above the creek and faces south.

The structure is a two-story, three bay log dwelling set on
very low stone foundations. A two-story, four bay ell, also of log,
extends to the rear or north. The entire structure is covered with
beaded weatherboarding displaying no decorative trim.

Windows appear to be spaced evenly in the front and side
elevations of the front section. Lower story windows contain nine
over six light double hung sashes, while those at the upper story and
the rear section have six over six light sashes. All are held within
moderately wide frames, trimmed with quirked quarter round moulding
and finished with a beaded inner edge. Six over three light sashes
with similar framing are present at the attic level. Windows at the
front elevation are flanked with paneled shutters at the main story
and with louvered shutters at the second floor level.

The main entrance is located in the center bay of the front
elevation. The entrance treatment is simple with framing similar to
that of the windows. The door, a relatively modern replacement, is
topped with a narrow transom. Other entrances are located in the north
elevation of the main section and in the east and west elevations of
the ell., All are framed similarly to the windows and employ six-
panel doors. -

A one-story porch supported by chamfered square posts extends
along the front eleyation. Extending along the entire east wall of
the ell is a double porch framed under the main roof span.

The roof of the main section is quite steeply pitched with
high brick chimneys extending from inside each gable end. The rear
ell has a slightly lower roof peak with brick chimneys located inside
the north gable end and at the jointure of the two sections. Sheet
metal roofing terminates at the end walls with tapered barge boards.
The eaves are finished with simple boxing.

The interior of the main section is bisected by an entrance
and stair hall. East of the hall are two rooms, each with a corner
fireplace. West of the hall is one large room across which, in re-
cent years, a partition has been built. The rear ell has been div-
ided into two rooms, each with a fireplace. Interior hardware in-
cludes large brass locks and large hinges with round flanges. Marks
on the door indicate, however, that these hinges are not original.
Interior doors have six panels which are not raised above the stiles.

Immediately behind the house is a two-story stone and brick
kitchen with a bake oven. South of Route 34 is a large frame bank
barn set on stone foundations. No physical evidence remains of the
mill or other dwellings which were part of the complex.

Surviving Civil War photographs of the milling complex show
that this house was covered with what appears to be white weather-
boarding. Just southeast of the present house was a large two-story .




AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

1 SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD
__PREHISTORIC  _ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING
'14004499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION
. _1500-1599 _AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS
__1800-1699 XARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION
X 1700-1799 - ~aR/T __ENGINEERING
¥ 1800-1889 ¥ OMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT
__13900- —_COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY

— INVENTION

— LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
—LAW

— LITERATURE

—MILITARY

—MuUsIc

—PHILOSOPHY
—POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

__RELIGION
__SCIENCE
__SCULPTURE
—SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—THEATER

— TRANSPORTATION
__OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

in appearance.
features infrequently found in Washington County.
! the appearance of dating from circa 1800 and thus was not necessarily
built by the Orndorff family, who acquired the property in 1762.
Orndorff family, according to numerous sources, was quite prosperous
and may have built and resided in one of the other dwellings which
appeared among the complex of buildings in the nineteenth century
photograph.

by the Mumma family until 1841,

Militia.

Mount Pleasant,

also known as Orndorff's Mill and Mumma's
Mill, is significant for its architecture, its contribution to com-
merce in Washington County during the late eighteenth and early
nineteenth centuries, and for the role it has played in U. S. military
history.

The house, constructed of logs, is representative of a major

architectural group in Western Maryland and southern Pennsylvania.
Log was used extensively as a building material in the area from the
earliest days of settlement to well into the nineteenth century.
from its log construction, however, Mount Pleasant is quite unusual
Its steeply pitched roof with high chimneys are

The structure has

Aside

The

Architecturally, Mount Pleasant is significant as an example

of turn of the nineteenth century period domestic construction, which
has remained to the present with minimal alteration.

Accounts of the Orndorff family indicate that Christian Orn-

dorff established a mill on the Antietam shortly after he_purchased
503 acres from James Smith for B654 on November 17, 1762.1
and sawmills erected by Christian Orndorff were replaced by newer
mills built by Christian's son, Christopher in 1782.
sold 303 acres of the Orndorff property,
plex to Jacob Mumma in 1796 for &5,500.

The flour

Christopher
including the milling com-

The mills were operated

although Jacob Mumma apparently
resided on the property for some time after the deed was transferred.
The mill continued to operate through the nineteenth century, pro-
yviding a stimulus to the local economy for well over a century.

According to Orndorff family history, flour from the mills

was shipped to eastern centers and helped to supply American troops
during the Reyolution.

The Mount Pleasant property is also important for its as-

sociation with significant military events in United States history.
Several members of the Orndorff family were officers of the Maryland
According to family history, the Orndorff house, during
the Revolution, was the scene of many military and policy making
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dwelling covered with wooden siding and possibly displaying some
stone construction. It had a double porch extending across its
entire front elevation and had a large centrally placed chimney stack.

South of present Route 34 and east of the barn was the mill
and a one and one-half story dwelling with an exterior stone chimney.
East of the creek and south of Route 34 was a two-story, three bay stone
dwelling. These buildings have not survived to the present. A 1902
deed to the property (Liber 116, folio 163) describes the land as being
"improved with a two-story, weather-boarded dwelling house with back
building, a large bank barn, a stone and frame grist mill and saw mill,
a stone, two-story dwelling house and other farm buildings..."

Mention should also be made of the three arched stone bridge
built by Silas Harry in 1824. Known as the middle bridge after the
Battle of Antietam, it was destroyed by high water in the late 19th
century.

The remaining buildings at Mount Pleasant are in deteriorated
to fair condition. The property contains 130 acres.

#8

conferences hosted by Christian Orndorff, member of the Maryland
Committee of Safety. General Horatio Gates is said to have been
one of many military officers who stayed at the Orndorff home.

Later, during the Civil War, Mount Pleasant was in a prominent
position at the "Middle Bridge" in the Battle of Antietam. Although
no extensive action was recorded in the immediate area, the bridge
and the road past Mount Pleasant was strategic in the movement of
troops.

ljulia A. Drake and James Ridgeley Orndorff, Millwheel to
Plowshare, (Cedar Rapids, Iowa: The Torch Press, 1938, p. 22.

#9
McClain Printing Co; 1972.
Washington County Land Records, Washington County Courthouse
Williams, Thomas J. C., History of Washington County, Hagerstown,
Mail Publishing Co., 1906.
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7. DESCRIPTION Pty
(Check One)
CONBTTION [] Excellent bl Good O Fair [C] Deteriorated ] Ruins [ ‘Unexposed
(Check One) {Check One)
K] Altered 50% [ Uncltered ] Moved Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Mt/  Pleasant is located just north of Maryland Route 34 west of the Antie-
tam Creek between Sharpsburg and Keedysville in Washington County, Maryland|
It is situated on an area of level ground above the creek and faces south.

The structure is a two-story, three bay log dwelling set on very low stone
foundations. A two-story, four bay ell, also of log, extends to the rear
or north. The entire structure is covered with beaded weatherboarding
displaying no decorative trim.

Windows appear to be spaced evenly in the front and side elevations of the
front section. Lower story windows contain nine over six pane " double
hung sashes, while those at the upper story and the rear section have six
over six light sashes. All are held within moderately wide frames,
trimmed with quirkeds¥8tid molding and finished with a beaded inner edge.
Six over three light sashes with similar framing are present at the attic
level. Windows at the front elevation are flanked with paneled shutters
at the main story and with louvered shutters at the second floor level.

The main entrance is located in the center bay of the front elevation.
The entrance treatment is simple with framing similar to that of the
windows. The door, a relatively modern replacement, is topped with a
narrow transom. Other entrances are located in the north elevation of
the main section and in the east and west elevations of the ell. All are
framed similarly to the windows and employ six-panel doors.

A one-story porch supported by chamfered square posts extends along the
front elevation, Extending along the entire east wall of the ell is a
double porch framed under the main roof span.

The roof of the main section is quite steeply pitched with high brick
chimneys extending from inside each gable end. The rear el| has a
slightly lower roof peak with brick chimneys located inside the north
gable end and at the jointure of the two sections. Sheet metal roofing
terminates at the end walls with tapered barge boards. The eaves are
finished with simple boxing.

The interior of the main section is bisected by an entrance and stair
hall. East of the hall are two rooms,each with a corner fireplace. West
of the hall is one large room across which, in recent years, has-been-run
a partitionl’”The rear el| has been divided into two rooms, each with a
fireplace. Interior hardware includes large brass box locks and large
hinges with round flanges. Marks on the door indicate, however, that
these hinges are not original. Interior doors have six panels which are
not raised above the stiles.

(See continuation sheet attached)

23S

SNOILONAYLSNI




SEE I'NS 1J‘I'h CTIONS

WA -106

I-A
NIFICANCE
PERIOD (Check One or More aa Appropriate)
[] Pre-Columbian [ 16th Century 18th Century (late) ] 20th Century
[0 15th Century O 17th Century B 19th Century (early)

SPECIFIC DATE!(S) (If Applicable and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal [0 Education [ Political ] Urben Planning
O Prehistoric [ Engineering [] Religion/Phi. [0 Other (Specity)
[} Histeric [ Industry losophy

O Agriculture [ Invention [C] Science

X1 Architecture [0 Lendscope [ Seulpture

O Am Architecture [ Secial/Human-

X] Commerce [0 Literoture itarian

[0 Communications ™ Military [0 Theater

[ Conservation [ Music [ Trensportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mi?iPleasant, also known as OrnEerf's Mill and Mumma's Mill,is sig-
nificant for its architecture, its contribution sgfﬁgmmerce in
Washington County during the late eighteenth and nifneteenth centuries,
and for the role it has played in U. S. Military history.

The house, constructed of logs, is representative of a major architect-
ural group in Western Maryland and southern Pennsylvania. Log was
used extensively as a building material in the area from the earliest
days of settlement to well into the nineteenth century. Aside

from its log construction, however, MtV Pleasant is quite unusual

in appearance. Its steeply pitched roof with high chimneys are

: :eatunes infrequently found in Washington County. The structure
na

the appearance of dating from cal’1800, and thus was not
necessarily built by the Orndorff family, who acquired the property
in 1762. The Orndorff family, according to numerous sources, was
quite prosperous and may have built and resided in one of the other
dwellings which appeared among the complex of buildings in the
nineteenth century photograph.
Architecturally, MY’ Pleasant is significant as an example of turn
of the nineteenth century period domestic construction, which has
remained to the present with minimal alteration.

Accounts of the Orndorff family indicate that Christian Orndorff
established a mill on the Antietam shortly after he purchased 503
acres from James Smith for £654 on Noyember 17, 1762.1- The flour
and sawmills erected by Christian 0rﬁ¥orff were replaced by newer
mills built by Christian's son, Christopher in 1782. Christopher
sold 303 acres of the Orndorff property, including the milling com-
plex, to Jacob Mumma in 1796 for  5,500. The mills were operated
by the Mumma family until 1841, although Jacob Mumma apparently
resided on the property for some time after the deed was transferred.
The mill continued to operate through the nineteenth century, pro-
viding a stimulus to the local economy for well over a century.
(See continuation sheet.)

1./Julia A. Drake and James Ridgeley Orndorff, Millwheel to Plowshare,
(Cedar Rapids, Iowa: The Torch Press‘{19381}p. i I8
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7. Description (Continued)

Immediately behind the house is a two-story stone and brick kitchen with
a bake oven. South of Route 34 is a large frame bank barn set on stone
foundations. No physical evidence remains of the mill or other dwellings
which were part of the complex.

Surviving Civil War photographs of the milling complex, show that this
house was covered with what appears to be white weatherboarding. Just
southeast of the present house was a large two-story dwelling covered with
wooden siding and possibly displaying some stone construction. It had

a double porch extending across its entire front elevation and had a

large centrally placed chimney stack.

South of present Route 34, and east of the barn was the mill and a one

and a half story dwelling with an exterior stone chimney. East of the creek
and south of Route 34, was a two-story, three bay stone dwelling. These
buildings have not survived to the present. A 1902 deed to the property
(Liber 116, folio 163) describes the land as being "improved with a two-
story, weather-boarded dwelling house with back building, a large bank

barn, a stone and frame grist mill and saw m111, a stone, two-story
dwelling house and other farm buildings %.

Mention should also be made of the three arched stone bridge built by
Silas Harry in 1824. Known as the middle bridge after the Battle of
Antietam, it was destroyed by high water late in the 19th century.
The remaining buildings at Mt Pleasant are in deteriorated to fair
condition. The property contains 130 acres.

8. State.of Significance (Continued)

According to Orndorff family history, flour from the mills was shipped to
eastern centers and helped to supply American troops during the Revolution.
The M. Pleasant property is also important for its association with sig-
nificant military events in United States history. Several members of the
Orndorff family were officers of the Maryland Militia. According to family
history, the Orndorff house, during the Revolution, was the scene of many
military and policy making conferencesg hosted by Christian Orndorff,
member of the Maryland Committee of Safety. General Horatio Gates is said
to have been one of many military officers who stayed at the Orndorff home.

Later, during the Civil War, Mt Pleasant was in a prominent position at the
'""Middle Bridge' in the Battle of Antietam. Although no extensive action was
recorded in the immediate area, the bridge and the road past Mti" Pleasant
was strategic in the movement of troops.




WA-TI-106 DEED RECORDS

. Liber 438, folio 458 March 30, 1966
Grantors: Brightwood Acres
Grantees: Charles E. Ritchie
141 Acres, 14 perches
"Smith's Hills,'" "The Resurvey on Hillsdale'", "Vineyard"

Liber 421, folio 431 April 1, 1965
Grantors: E. D. Plummer, et al.
Grantees: Brightwood Acres, Inc.

Liber 318, folio 35 December 7, 1956
Grantors: Louis Lohman and Susan Lohman
Grantees: E. D. Plummer, et al.

Liber 181, folio 341 October 29, 1928
Grantors: Walter H. Snyder and Daisy M. Snyder
Grantees: Louis Lohman
$4,867.52

Liber 116, folio 163 April 10, 1902
Grantor: Sarah E. Grimes
Grantee: John M. Gaines
$7,416.34
152 % acres, 34 perches

. "improved with a two-story weatherboarded dwelling house with back
building, a large bank barn, a stone and frame grist mill and saw
mill, a stone two-story dwelling house and other farm buildingd' .
described as being the same land where Jacob A. Myers resided at
the time of his death.

Liber 116, folio 162 April 10, 1902
Grantors: Alexander Neill, Charles G. Biggs, John M. Gaines, Trustees
Grantee: Sarah E. Grimes
$7,416.34

Liber 86, folio 32 January 22, 1884
Grantors: Frederick Miller and Wife
Grantee: Jacob.A. Myers
an undivided one-half interest

Liber WMCKK 1, folio 457 April 27, 1869
Grantor: David Myers
Grantee: Jacob H. Myers and Frederick Miller
$20,000, 152 % Acres and 34 perches

Liber IN 18, folio 652 August 1, 1867
Grantors: Christian Startzman, Trustee

Grantee: David Myers
$19,050

. Liber IN 8, folio 339 November 8, 1853
Grantor: Lewis Watson

Grantee: Joshua Newcomer
$19,180
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DEED RECORDS, CONTD:

Liber IN3, folio 913 October 14, 1848

Grantor: Jacob Miller
Grantee: Lewis Watson
$16,250

described as being the same tract in which Jacob Miller purchased the
interest of John Emmert at Sherriff's Sale, December 1, 1846.

Liber IN3, folio 615 May 8, 1846

Grantor: Joseph D. Emmert

Grantee: Jacob Miller

$3,000., an undivided one-half part

152 Acres, 34 perches. excepting the 10 acres of land .

whereon Jacob Miller now lives . . . as reserved by him when he sold
the property to Samuel Mumma for his and his wife Barbara's use
during their natural life.

Liber YY, folio 494 April 28, 1841

Grantor: Samuel Mumma
Grantee: Jacob and John Emmert
$23,000.

Liber SS, folio 835 April 3, 1837

Grantor: Jacob Mumma and Barbara Mumma

Grantee: Samuel Mumma

$20,000. contaiing by estimation, 324 % Acres, plus several
additional tracts.

Liber I, folio 764 May 6, 1796

Grantor: Christopher Orndorff

Grantee: Jacob Mumma

L 5,500. Parts of the '"Resurvey on Smith's Hills,
"Resurvey on Hills Dales,' "The Vinyard"
"Porto Santo"
303 Acres, 11 Acres, 10% Acres.

Liber G, folio 472 May 2, 1791

Grantor: Christian Orndorff

Grantee: Christopher Orndorff

£ 2,500. Parcel #1)Resurvey on Smith's Hills, 303 Acres
Parcel #2)Porto Sancto, 11 Acres
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WA-I1-106

Mount Pleasant (Newcomer Farm, Orndorff's Mill, Mumma's Mill)
18422 Shepherdstown Pike, Sharpsburg

Charles Varle's 1808 Map of Frederick and Washington Counties

Mumma’s Mill

Newcomer Farm
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WA-II-106

Mount Pleasant (Newcomer Farm, Orndorff's Mill, Mumma's Mill)
18422 Shepherdstown Pike, Sharpsburg

Lake, Griffing & Stevenson Atlas of Washington County, Maryland, 1877
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This circle covers the house, the barn,

WA-II-106 and, significantly, the mill site itself.

Mount Pleasant (Newcomer Farm, Orndorff's Mill, Mumma's Mill)

18422 Shepherdstown Pike, Sharpsburg
Keedysville Quadrangle
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WA-II-106
Mount Pleasant (Newcomer Farm, Orndorff's Mill, Mumma's Mill)

PP

Middle Brdge from the North East (Newcomer Farm - A, Gardner, Sept 1862)
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PAULA STONER DICKEY
CONSULTANT, WASHINGTON C0.
HISTORICAL SITES SURVEY
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AINSUI TAN WASH
HISTORICAL SITES













PAULA STONER DICKEY
CONSULTANT, WASHINGTON CO.
HISTORICAL SITES SURVEY
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